
NOTICE OF A SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE OLIVENHAIN MUNICIPAL WATER 

DISTRICT’S FINANCE COMMITTEE 
1966 Olivenhain Road, Encinitas, CA 92024 
Tel: (760) 753-6466 • Fax: (760) 753-1578 

VIA TELECONFERENCE AND IN PERSON 

Pursuant to AB 3035, effective January 1, 2003, any person who requires a 

disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in a 

public meeting shall make such a request in writing to the District for 

immediate consideration. 

DATE: MONDAY, APRIL 1, 2024

TIME: 11:00 A.M. 

PLACE: HYBRID SPECIAL MEETING VIA ZOOM AND IN PERSON

The meeting is being held virtually as a convenience to the public. The meeting will not stop 
or suspend its in-person meeting should a technological interruption occur with respect to 
the Zoom or call-on options listed on the agenda.  

 For Zoom Participation:   For Zoom Call-in Only: 
         www.zoom.us/join               Call: (669) 900-9128  
  Meeting ID: 875 4817 0940 Meeting ID: 875 4817 0940 
        Passcode: 772224          Passcode: 772224 

Public Participation/Comment: Members of the public can participate in the meeting by 
emailing your comments on an agenda item to Leo Mendez at lmendez@olivenhain.com or 
address the finance committee directly in real-time under the public comment section. If you 
do not receive a confirmation email that your comment has been received, please call (760) 
632-4652 or address the committee under the public comment section to ensure that your
comments are heard in real-time. The subject line of your email should clearly state the item
number you are commenting on and should include your name and phone number. All
comments will be emailed to the finance committee members.

Note: Items On The Agenda May Be Taken Out Of Sequential Order As Their 
Priority Is Determined By The Committee 

1

http://www.zoom.us/join


1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL (BOARD MEMBERS) 
 

3. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2024 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
6.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PRELIMINARY FISCAL YEARS 2025 AND 2026 

OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET  
 
7. CONSIDER FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

2



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

OF OLIVENHAIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

February 7, 2024 
 

A regular meeting of the Finance Committee of Olivenhain Municipal Water District was 
held on Wednesday, February 7th, 2024, at the District office, 1966 Olivenhain Road, Encinitas, 
California via teleconference and in person.  

Director Meyers called the meeting to order at 2:01pm. In attendance were Neal Meyers, 
Board Treasurer; Lawrence A. Watt, Board Secretary; Kimberly Thorner, General Manager; Rainy 
Selamat, Finance Manager; Leo Mendez, Accounting Supervisor; Jared Graffam, Financial Analyst 
II; Georgeanna Clark, Financial Analyst I; and Lindsey Stephenson, Engineering Manager. Also in 
attendance were Sudhir Pardiwala and John Wright from Raftelis regarding agenda item 6. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL (BOARD MEMBERS) 
 
3. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Director Watt moved to adopt the agenda, seconded by Director Meyers, and carried 
unanimously. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There were no public comments. 

 
5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 2, 2023 REGULAR FINANCE 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
Director Watt moved to approve the November 2nd, 2023 meeting minutes, seconded 
by Director Meyers and carried unanimously. 

 
6. REVIEW OF 2024 WASTEWATER RATE STUDY WITH RAFTELIS FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS 

 
Finance Manager Selamat briefed the committee on the agenda item and introduced 
Mr. Sudhir Pardiwala from Raftelis. Mr. Pardiwala presented the results of the 2024 
Wastewater Rate Study (Study) to the committee noting the goal of the Study is to 
ensure the District sets wastewater rates at a level that allows the District to recover its 
projected operating and capital costs over the next five years. Mr. Pardiwala then 

3



presented a graph to the committee illustrating that the District’s previous wastewater 
rate increases, determined in the 2020 Cost of Service Study, were not enough to keep 
up with the increases in CPI and capital costs. Director Meyers asked if CPI is included in 
the proposed rate increases. General Manager Thorner responded that the Study 
includes certain assumptions for future CPI increases which are factored into the 
proposed rate adjustments.  
 
Engineering Manager Stephenson presented a summary of the major capital projects 
scheduled for the next five years which are included in the Study, the importance of 
certain projects that cannot be delayed, as well as the projects that were able to be 
moved to later years in order to help smooth out capital expenditures. Director Meyers 
asked why projects that are six to ten years out are also included in the five-year cost of 
service study. Mr. Pardiwala explained that it is to help ensure the District remains in a 
strong financial position beyond the five-year rate study period and to avoid rate spikes 
in future years. 
 
Mr. Pardiwala recommended that the District implement a 5.5% rate increase each year 
for the next five years and issue $6.5 million in debt in fiscal year 2026. Mr. Pardiwala 
explained that he and his team considered several factors, including the District’s 
operating and capital expenses and financial policies when calculating the net revenue 
requirement for the next five years. Director Meyers why Raftelis is recommending rate 
a debt issuance in addition to issuing debt. Mr. Pardiwala explained that without the 
debt issuance the rate increases would have to be higher, at  about 7-8%, in order to 
cover the net revenue requirement. Mr. Pardiwala added that by issuing debt, the 
District is able to spread out the necessary rate adjustments over a longer period while 
keeping the year-to-year increase at a lower level. Director Meyers asked what the debt 
would be used for. General Manger Thorner added that the debt would be used to 
cover expenses for upcoming capital projects included in the Study. Finance Manager 
Selamat added that the funds will be used up within five years to avoid arbitrage, but 
that it would be ideal to use the funds within three years, as the rate study forecasts. 
Director Watt noted that the total proposed increases across the five years is 27% in 
total, and asked what the increase was over the prior five years. General Manager 
Thorner explained that the annual increases in the prior 5 years were 2-3% per year. She 
added that during the COVID -19 pandemic, the Board chose not to raise rates for one 
year, due to the pandemic’s financial strain to customers. Director Meyers asked how 
much of the 5.5% increase is driven by increases in operating costs and how much is 
driven by capital projects. Mr. Pardiwala presented a slide illustrating the total expenses 
for each fiscal year in the Study by type (operating, capital, debt service), and how much 
of the total expenses each year would be covered by rates vs reserves.  
 
Mr. John Wright with Raftelis presented the process involved in conducting a cost-of-
service analysis. Mr. Wright stated the same methodology was used with the 2024 study 
as was used in the previous 2020 Cost-of-Service Study, which follows the industry 
standard. Mr. Wright then presented the proposed rates for each customer class over 

4



the next five years and the financial impact on a typical customer’s bill. Mr. Wright also 
presented a bill comparison survey comparing the District’s current and proposed rates 
to the rates at other local agencies. Director Meyers inquired about why the District’s 
rates are higher than several other local districts. General Manager Thorner explained 
that it is due to several factors including service area topography, since our system 
requires pumping in certain areas adding to the overall cost, and economies of scale 
resulting from the District’s wastewater treatment plant being smaller compared to 
other local districts. 
 
Director Meyers and Director Watt agreed to bring the prosed rate increases before the 
full Board of Directors for discussion at the next meeting. 

 
 
7.      REVIEW OF DISTRICT INVESTMENTS AND CASH REPORT FOR FOURTH QUARTER 2023  

 
Finance Manager Selamat reviewed the investment report as of December 31, 2023, 
with the committee. Cash and investments were discussed. Finance Manager Selamat 
reported that the current yield on District investment portfolio has increased slightly 
compared to the last quarter due to replacing matured securities with higher yields 
based on the market. Finance Manager Selamat noted that as securities mature the 
District is replacing them with shorter maturities to take advantage of the current 
market conditions. 
 
Finance Manager Selamat reported that District investments are in compliance with the 
District’s Investment policy and that the District has sufficient funds to meet its financial 
obligations for the next 6 months. 
 
Finance Manager Selamat next presented the summary of fund balances over the 
previous 5 years which was requested by the committee at the August 8th, 2023, 
meeting. Director Meyers noted that the Water Operating Fund is nearing the maximum 
balance limit and asked what the policy is when a fund exceeds its maximum balance. 
Finance Manager Selamat explained that each year, after the audit has been completed, 
the Fiscal Year end balances are reviewed. If a fund balance exceeds the maximum 
balance set by the policy, it is brought to the Board with staff recommendations on 
whether the money should be transferred to a different fund or remain in its current 
fund. 

 
7a. UPDATE LIST OF OMWD APPROVED INVESTMENT BROKERS   
 
Finance Manager Selamat explained that one of the District’s current approved brokers, 
Mutual Securities, can no longer provide brokerage services for the District so staff is 
recommending the District add Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. to the list of approved 
brokers. This would allow the District to have three approved brokers to choose from, to 
get competitive quotes. Director Meyers asked why staff recommends having three 

5



approved brokers. General Manager Thorner responded the Board has preferred to 
have at least three brokers in the past so the District is less dependent on any one 
broker.  
 
Director Meyers and Director Watt voted to bring the motion before the full Board of 
Directors at the next meeting. 

 
 
8. RECEIVE REPORT ON SURVEY OF RESERVE POLICIES (INFORMATIONAL ITEM) 

 
Finance Manager Selamat introduced the item to the Committee, a survey of reserve 
policies of other water districts. Director Meyers asked where staff believes our policy 
stands versus the policies of other districts shown. Finance Manager Selamat responded 
that the District’s current policy is a good fit for the District’s needs, and that a Fund 
Balance Reserve Policy is not a “one size fits all” when compared to different districts. 
Finance Manager Selamat added that when comparing fund balance policies to other 
agencies, certain factors should be considered, including debt, operating structure is, 
and the balance of fixed versus variable costs regarding other agencies’ revenue and 
expenses. Director Meyers stated that he wanted to make sure our policy was not 
causing us to raise rates more than necessary. Finance Manager Selamat responded that 
maximum balances in the policy are set at a reasonable level compared to other districts 
and that the policy is not having a negative effect on rates. Director Watt asked if our 
fund balance reserve policy has ever been checked for reasonableness. General 
Manager Thorner responded that the District has previously worked with a consultant 
to review the reasonableness of the District’s Reserve Policy and that the consultant had 
recommended the District increase its minimum reserve balance for one of the funds. 

 
 
9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/INFORMATION 

 
There were no future agenda items requested. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:26pm. 

6



         
  
 

 

   Memo 
Date:  April 1, 2024 

To:  Finance Committee  

From:  Rainy Selamat, Finance Manager 

Via:  Kimberly Thorner, General Manager 

Subject: REVIEW AND DISCUSS PRELIMINARY FISCAL YEARS 2025 AND 2026 
OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET  

 

 
 

Staff will present the attached preliminary operating and capital budget for fiscal years 
2024 and 2025 at the meeting for review and discussion with the Committee.  Following 
discussion with the Committee, the draft budget will be presented to the Board for 
consideration and discussion at the April 17th budget workshop.    
 
 
 
Attachment: Preliminary Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026 Operating and Capital Budget Presentation  
 
 

Agenda Item 6 

7



Preliminary Budget 
Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026

April 01, 2024 Finance Committee

8



FY 2025 and FY 2026
Budget Setting Process  

Received input from each department manager on their 
departmental needs for the development of FY 2025 budget 
Developed budget key assumptions for FY 2025 
Held budget workshops with managers and GM

Focus on cost cutting measures throughout in order to mitigate wholesale increases and inflation

Used historical and current information to arrive at FY 2024 
projections 
Used current SDCPI to forecast FY 2026 Budget from FY 2025 Draft 
Budget  

19



Preliminary Budget 
Revenue Assumptions  

Potable and Recycled Water Sales Volume: 
use average of CY 2022 and CY 2023 for FY 2025 & FY 2026 
~ 1,100 AF less than FY 2024 budget for water sales  

Wastewater Sales Volume: 
SFR- based on water used from Dec to May, cap at 10 units per month
Commercial and MF – based on monthly actual water consumption
Use FY 2024 sewer EDU’s    

Water Revenue: 
Use 2020 Financial Plan as a base 
Assume 5% planned revenue increase each year for FY 2025 and FY 2026 

Assume full pass-throughs of purchased water wholesale price increases
Cost of service based on OMWD O&M and Capital Costs  

Pass-through inflation based on SDCPI – 4.8% increase based on 2nd half index in 2023 over 2022
Growth – less than 1% or 50 new meters 

Assume 100% build-out in 2030
Rate Reimbursement Credit @11cents/unit 

Sewer Revenue:
Assume 5.5% rate increase effective July 1, 2024 and July 1, 2025

Other Operating Revenue: 
Selling of Excess Treated Water from DCMWTP to VWD

Less than FY 2024- DCMWTP planned shutdown for maintenance 

210



Preliminary Budget
Revenue Assumptions – cont.

Other Operating Revenue - $760K: 
Use FY 2024 projection and increase by escalation factor per the cell tower agreements

Property Tax Revenue: 
Use FY 2024 projection and escalation factor

Investment Income:
Based on forecasted reserves   
Assume 3% for FY 2025 and 2% for FY 2026 

Capacity Fee Revenue:
Estimated by OMWD Engineering Department 

Grant Revenue: 
$3.5 million (FY 2025) and $817k (FY 2026)
FY 2025 grant funds are mainly from the Tittle XVI Grant ($3mil during FY 2025), most costs 
coming from the Neighborhood 1 SPS and the Manchester Recycled PL Projects. 
FY 2026 grant funds are mainly from the Dep of Parks & Rec EFRR grant ($679k during FY 
2026) to expand the parking lot and trails.

Other Revenue: 
Selling of District Parcels: $1.15 million in FY 2025 to offset capital expenditures  

311



Preliminary Budget 
Operating and Maintenance Expenses

Goal: Meeting priorities set by the Board and included in the District’s goals and objectives 

Purchased Water:  

Assume 5% purchased water wholesale cost increases for potable and recycled  

Will be updated in May 

Inflation Factors: 

CPI-U Carlsbad Annual Increase from January 2024 to January 2023: 5.11% 

CPI-U Carlsbad Second Half Increase from 2023 to 2022: 4.75%

Labor and Benefit Costs: 
Staffing Changes: 

FY 2025: No additional FTE, postpone one (1) new position, two (2) Utility positions to remain frozen (Cost Mitigation*)
FY 2026: Includes one (1) Senior Admin Analyst Position per the staffing analysis, two (2) Utility positions to remain frozen

Assume a 6% increase in labor costs for fiscal years 2025 and 2026 based on Labor MOU 
SD CPI max of 3.5% plus 2.5% merit pool per MOU 

Assume a 10% increase in health insurance premium costs in 2025 and 2026
Insurance Costs: 

Workers Comp insurance: use actual ex-mode rate of 60% for fiscal year ’25
Liability, Cyber, Property and Crime insurance: estimated increase of 15% for total cost of $517k in FY 2025

Pension Costs: based on CalPERS report 
Additional Discretionary Payment of $311k each year for 2025 and 2026 

412



Preliminary Budget 
Operating and Maintenance Expenses (cont.)

 PAYGO from Rates and Charges to pay for CIP
Water: $8.6mil – pending completion 2024 Water COSS
Wastewater: $1.1mil – 2024 Wastewater COSS 

Pension 
Meet Board Pension Funding Policy Goal - $311K ADP

$500K to Water PSF to pay $280K ADP to CalPERS

$50k to Wastewater to pay $31K ADP to CalPERS

Rate Stabilization
Fund Board RRC Program @11 Cents/Unit 
Subject to change, pending 2024 COSS 

Debt Service Obligations
Outstanding Debts: 2015A, 2016A, 2021A, 2021B, SRF, and RAD 96-1

FY 2025 Debt Service Payment, net: $5.4mil

FY 2026 Debt Service Payment, net:  $5.8mil

513



Budget Drivers and Uncertainties 
Rising cost of water from MWD and SDCWA 

Increase the cost burden on OMWD rate payers  

Water revenue and expense volatility 
Demand variability based on temperature 
Take or Pay Recycled Water Purchase Agreements
Potential increase in recycled water costs for alternative supply due to Vallecitos 
Water District shutdown in FY 2025   

Economic and market conditions  
Inflationary

Pushing up energy, steel, chemical and other supply costs
Increased project costs 

Federal Reserve 
Investment income 

Tight Labor Market 
Unemployment Rate: 4.7% 

614



SDCWA’s 2023 Five Year Forecast* 

7* will be updated by SDCWA in 2024 15



Consolidated Actual vs Budget Summary
As of 2/29/2024 (Draft)

816



Consolidated Actual vs Budget Summary
As of 2/29/2024 (Draft) - continued

917



FYE 2025 & 2026 
Sources of Funds

10*Total may not add up to 100% due to rounding. 18



FYE 2025 & 2026
Uses of Funds

11*Total may not add up to 100% due to rounding. 19



Departmental Operating Costs

1220



Cost Reductions included in this Budget  

Reprioritization of non-critical projects to minimize risk
Deferral of Water and Wastewater CIP  

Water: San Dieguito Groundwater Desalination Project, less critical WTP, postponed 
pipeline and PRS, postponed or reduced recommended recurring.
Wastewater: $6MM in less critical projects deferred to years 11 & 12

Deferral of several equipment purchases 
Unfilled two (2) positions, delayed one (1) new FTE until FY 2026

Use interns and temporary labor   
Renegotiating existing recycled water purchased agreements 
The preliminary operating budget for FY 2025 includes:

a 2.6% reduction in OMWD O&M expenses compared to original staff proposed budget, or
a 1.1% reduction in total O&M, net of capitalized expenses, compared to original staff 
proposed budget 
FY 2024 Total Approved Budget, net of capitalized expenses: $26.013 million

Pursue other revenue sources to offset increased capital expenditures 
Selling of District Parcels - $1.15MM 
State and Federal Grants - $4.3MM 

Title 16 and Department of Parks and Recreation

1321



FYE 2025 & 2026 
Preliminary Operating Budget – All Funds

14* Amended budget amounts approved by the Board at mid-year review.
** Includes sale of district parcels, rebates, and investment income on all reserve funds, excluding capital.
*** Includes cap fees from developers, grant funding and investment income on capital reserve funds.

22



FYE 2025 & 2026 
Operating and Capital Expenditures

15*Total may not add up to 100% due to rounding. 23



Capital Expenditures 
and Spending Plan

FY 2025 & FY 2026
Biennial Budget

24



Capital Expenditures Summary
Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026

Annual Capital Item/Equipment Purchases – less than $500k FY 
2025, less than $600k FY 2026 (slides 18 and 19)
Proposed Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026 Capital Improvement 
Projects (CIP) Spending Plan 

Use 3% capital inflation starting Fiscal Year 2025
CIP planned spending of approx. $46.6 million projected in Fiscal 
Years 2025 and 2026 ( slides 20 and 21) 

Of the $46.6 million proposed forecast spending in CIP, 
approximately $15.3 million in unspent capital expenditures 
approved by the Board from prior budget due to construction 
delays ( slide 20)

1725



Equipment Purchases FYE 2025

1826



Equipment Purchases FYE 2026

1927



Unspent Capital from Prior Budget 
Included in FY 2025 Appropriation

2028



Summary of Significant Projects (>$1MM)
and Funding Source

2129



Fiscal Years 2025 & 2026 
Appropriation Summary

2230



Fiscal Years 2025 & 2026 
New Multi-Year CIPs

2331



San Dieguito Valley Groundwater Desalination 
Plant with Staff Recommended Option

24

Staff recommends Yellow schedule which is included throughout the capital 
expenditure graphs and CIP tables included in today’s presentation. 

Staff does not recommend Red Option, which is Red Schedule, as it puts 
already committed grant funding at risk.

32



Capital Improvement Projects Spending Plan 
Water (Potable & Recycled) (1 of 3) 

2533



Capital Improvement Projects Spending Plan 
Water (Potable & Recycled) (2 of 3) 

2634



Capital Improvement Projects Spending Plan 
Water (Potable & Recycled) (3 of 3) 

2735



Capital Improvement Projects Spending Plan 
Sewer (Wastewater)

2836



Reserve Balance Historical and Forecasted
Water

2937



Reserve Balance Projections
Wastewater

30

*Excess Operating Fund cash will be transferred to Capital Fund with Board approval to align with 2024 
COSS.

38



Staff Requests and Committee Actions
Receive direction(s) from the Committee on the preliminary Fiscal 
Years 2025 and 2026 Operating and Capital Budget, including the 
Green, Yellow, and Red schedule options for the San Dieguito Valley 
Ground Water Desalination Plant project.
Bring forward the preliminary budget for discussion with the Board 
at the April 17th budget workshop 
Staff continues with budget refinement process (April/May)

purchased water cost increases eff 1/1/2025
SDCWA’s five-year forecast for 2026 rates 
CIP cost estimates 

Present final draft of the FY 2025 and FY 2026 Operating and 
Capital budget to the Board for consideration and discussion for 
consideration and adoption in June  (May/June)
Update 5 Year LRFP and complete 2024 Water Cost of Service Study 
(June/July)

3139


	AGENDA
	CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2024 FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
	REVIEW AND DISCUSS PRELIMINARY FISCAL YEARS 2025 AND 2026 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET



